MINUTES OF MEETING LAKESIDE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT


The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Lakeside Plantation Community Development District was held on Wednesday, August 15, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. at the Lakeside Plantation Clubhouse, 2200 Plantation Boulevard, North Port, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Joe Szewczyk Harry Smith Camille Stephens Alan (Bud) Sabol Pina Chichelli

Also present were:

George Flint Michael Eckert Mallory Clancy Nathan Trates Heather Alexandre Residents


FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS
 Chairman Vice Chairman
Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary



District Manager District Counsel
District Engineer by phone Amenities Manager
Vesta



Roll Call
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Mr. Flint called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m., called the roll, and led the pledge of allegiance. All Supervisors were present.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS	Audience Comments on Specific Items on
the Agenda
(Speakers willfill out a card and submit it to the District Manager prior to beginning of the meeting)
Mr. Flint: This is the public comment period on any agenda items. Keep in mind, there will be a public hearing for the budget adoption. If you have any comments or questions on the budget, please hold those until the public hearing. Other than the budget adoption, are there any comments on the agenda items, from the public? Hearing none, there will be another
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opportunity later in the meeting under General Audience Comments to bring up any items that are not on the agenda that you want to bring to the Board's attention.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	District Engineer's Report
Mr. Flint: Mallory Clancy is on the phone.
Ms. Clancy: I have nothing to report, unless there are any questions.
Mr. Flint: It's been quiet since the last meeting. I think the Board tabled some items until the spring that Mallory will be working on later on, but right now, it's quiet from an engineering perspective.
Ms. Clancy: Sounds good.
Mr. Flint: Are there any questions from the Board? Mr. Sabol: No.
Mr. Flint: Can you forward me a copy of the lake map with the location of the lakes and their numbers?
Ms. Clancy: Definitely.
Ms. Clancy left the meeting.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Unfinished Business Items
Mr. Flint: I didn't have anything specifically on the agenda for unfinished business. Mr. Sabol: Do you want to speak about the playground now or later in the meeting?
Mr. Flint: We can do it now if the Board wants to, or discuss it under Staff Reports or Other Business. However, you want to handle it.
Mr. Szewczyk: Let's discuss it now.
Mr. Sabol: The Board voted to put the playground in. The playground has been an eyesore. The Board made a mistake. We put it in. First, we talked about putting it by the basketball court, but we decided to put it here, and we ran into major problems. The Board was ridiculed for it and made fun of by several people. I just want to discuss some of the things that this Board did, because Harry is going to leave the Board and Pina is coming on. We've been on the Board for three-and-a-half years, and put new pavers at the pool, with a new fence around it. We have new basketball, pickleball and bocce courts, a new picnic area, new chairs and carpets, new cameras for surveillance and new LED lights around the pool, plus new motors and pumps.
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Lots of times, people overshadow things. They looked at 'one thing that was bad, which was the playground, which overshadowed everything else, but they didn't look at the good things that this Board has done. I think this Board has done a wonderful job, as far as I'm concerned. I would like to bring up the playground for general conservation. Should we fix it where it's at or should we move it?
Mr. Szewczyk: I don't have an answer. At this point, I feel like we have to weigh the cost of moving it, versus fixing it. I don't know. I can see the quote that Berry Construction provided to fix it. That number doesn't make me happy. lfl look at how much it cost to install the playground, and then move it close to the lake, now we are talking about fencing it. I don't know what that's going to cost. George, do you have any idea?
Mr. Flint: We have to get a couple of quotes.
Mr. Sabol: Should we put it under further study and get someone to come in and give us a price? We have one price, which is $22,000. Is that correct?
Mr. Szewczyk: Yes.
Mr. Sabol: We should get some prices on moving it over there. If it is way out of line, don't worry about it. I want some kind of guarantees and a good contract that it will be fixed correctly.
Ms. Stephens: My problem with paying this much money, is that the company we hire to
do the work, should know what they are doing. In the past, we might have had water problems. I don't recall it being this bad, but now it's horrible. I agree with Bud, that it should be cost effective to move it. Having said that, I hate to see another fence over on that side. In my opinion, it looks terrible. That's how I feel, but there are five people on the Board. If the company that initially did the work, could fix it for this price, which is crazy, they should give us some kind of guarantee. I want to see it in writing and I want the lawyer to say yes. They are going to be held accountable. Somebody has to be held accountable. We didn't do it. They did the work and messed it up, and they are not willing to even split the difference. That's my problem.
Mr. Sabol: Mike, is there any chance of reimbursement from the company? We gave
them the contract, but had a secondary company do the work.
Mr. Eckert: Yes, there's a chance. The contract has a three-year warranty, in.terms of the installation. Where the issue is, we anticipate that they would say that there was some
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limitation on them being able to raise it up, because of either the location or decisions that were made in the fiel� so you would have to most likely, either end up litigating that or negotiating some sort of settlement with them. My suggestion to the Board would be to talk to them. If they want to be part of the solution, more so than what they proposed, which is very nominal, we can engage in discussions with them, in terms of a settlement that might involve them doing some of the work. If they are not interested in doing that immediately, I suggest that the Board go ahead and get the work done, and then you will decide later whether or not you want to pursue that company at that point. We have written the documents the best that we could write them, in terms of having a warranty, but now you have to enforce it and that's not without a cost.
Mr. Sabol: So we should move it?
Mr. Eckert: I have only seen the one proposal that they had, which was for a top treatment, but it is not going to deal with the actual issue that you have. I think we have to go back to talk to them a second time and say, "That's not going to be good enough. The Board
discussed it and we believe that this falls under the warranty and you guys need to work with us
some more." It's worth having that conversation, but if they say "No, we are not willing to work with you towards a remedy in terms of them doing some of the labor," don't pursue it any further and go ahead and get the work done or get it moved the way that you want, and then we can decide after that. We will have a monetary amount, at that point in time, in terms of our cost. Then we can go back and talk to them. If that didn't work, then the Board would have to decide
whether or not you want to litigate it. You don't have to make a decision on litigation today, and I wouldn't recommend that you do that today.
Mr. Smith: I received an email and I think you mentioned that we had the three-year warranty. GameTime who installed the playground; gave all types of excuses and basically said, "Dig a trenchfrom the sidewalks down to the drain." The actual problem is that the water in the drain is the same height as the water on the playground. The only way that I see that this is going to get fixed, is to raise that playground up, at least level with the tennis courts. Is that something that you George or Mike feel comfortable with, and going back to GameTime and saying, "We would like some sort of compensation and here is what we feel needs to be done?"
They were the professionals and should've at least seen it and said, "You know what, you guys
are going to have a problem because you are below grade." My opinion is to hold off on how we want to handle it. That's my opinion. It has nothing to do with the rest of the Board. I
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looked at this a lot, and I am in total agreement that the only way that it's going to get fixed, is to dig it up and raise it, probably close to 2 feet. You would have to take measurements to see where it would be level, but I'm guessing it's in the 2-foot range. $22,000 is a lot of money, and if GameTime is willing to come out here and say, "We will do it for half of that," I'm satisfied. We have to do something, because its unusable the way it is right now. The only thing that I can do is say to the community, "I'm sorry, but when you hire aprofessional to do something, you figure that they are going to know what they are doing." As I said, you know what happens when you assume something.
Ms. Stephens: The bottom line is, even if all five Board Members were watching them, how would we know if it's too high or too low? We wouldn't know. We are relying the same way you rely on a doctor. You are relying on his opinion, because he is the expert. You are hiring an expert and assuming that they know what they are doing.
Mr. Sabol: In my opinion, we have to make a decision and go with it, because it is hanging out there for too long. I would have George reach out to GameTime, to see what they can do for us.
Mr. Flint: I think based on what Mike advised, the first step would be, if they feel like
they don't have any liability, to come in and spray additional mulch. They mentioned some conditions that they said were in place before they did the work, which indicated that they think it was an ongoing issue, but we can go back and tell them that we have a proposal. We believed that it was installed too low and should ask them if they are willing to remediate. If they say no, the next step would be to ask if they would be willing to share in the cost for remediation, and see where it goes from there. In the meantime, if the Board wants, we can also get a price for relocation, just so you have costs to compare. I think on relocation, we wouldn't be talking about a fence like we have around the pickleball court. Typically, with playgrounds, you see fences like what's around the pool. It would be a 4-foot aluminum fence. We can start with that and see where we get to, before the next meeting.
Mr. Sabol: That's the way I feel, Joe. I don't know how the rest of the Board feels, but I
think that's what we should do.
Mr. Szewczyk: I agree. Let's see what GameTime has to offer and a price on the relocation. I agree with Camille. Whether its 4 feet or not, I prefer not to have another fenced in area over there. I would like to see this area worked out, but obviously if the costs are such that
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it just doesn't make any sense to keep it there, I'm going to have to live with it. There are a lot of things that I had to live with that I didn't necessarily agree with, but you go with what's best for some kind of compromise between the aesthetics and the economics. So, let's just reach out to the company and see where it goes from there.
Mr. Smith: I am good with that too. Ms. Chichelli: Okay, I'm good.
Ms. Stephens: Yes.
Mr. Szewczyk: I think so.
Mr. Flint: Alright. We will put it on the next agenda and follow up based on the Board's direction.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
	Public Hearing

 New Business Items
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Mr. Flint: Next, we have the public hearings to adopt the annual budget, impose the annual assessments and authorize us to certify the Assessment Roll.
	Consideration of Resolution 2018-09 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget and Relating to the Annual Appropriations

Mr. Flint: This Resolution adopts the Fiscal Year 2019 budget. Exhibit A is the Proposed Budget. You approved a Proposed Budget back in the spring and set today as the date, place and time for its final consideration. We advertised in the newspaper, as required by Statute, and sent it to the City of North Port in Sarasota County. Also, as required by Statute, we posted the budget on the website and met all of the requirements, as far as noticing. Let me start by asking for a motion to open the public hearing.

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor, the Public Hearing was opened.

Mr. Flint: What is the Board's preference? Do you want to take public comment and then have discussion, or have discussion first and then take public comments?
Mr. Szewczyk: I say that we ask for public comments first, because we can incorporate those comments into what we need to discuss.
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Mr. Flint: This budget was in the agenda on the website. It's online and has been available, since it was approved back in the spring. There is no proposed increase in the per unit assessment amounts, so that your operating and maintenance (O&M) and debt assessments remain the same as the current year, if the Board adopts it like this. At this point, they can't increase the assessments, because there would be additional mailed notice requirements, etc. Are there any public comments on the Resolution or the budget or the assessments? Hearing none, we will close the floor to public comments and will bring it back to the Board. We provided Exhibit A to you. Revenue is the same. The only difference is the Carry Forward is slightly higher. This year, we are recognizing $25,000 to balance the budget. That is projected to be carried forward from the current year, so when you look at the difference in the current year, between our revenue and expenses, we are projecting to be on the roll for about $25,000, so we are using that to balance the budget. That allows us to transfer $130,000 to your Capital Reserve Fund, consistent with the Reserve Study that the Board revised last year, I believe. Administrative costs increased slightly from $112,300 to $114,000. The Management Fee has a 3% inflationary factor. General Liability Insurance increased by about $800. Those two comprise the majority . of that increase. Property Insurance is slightly increasing by $100. Operational expenses increased by $5,000, due to the water utilities for the entrance feature. We are increasing the budget from $1,500 a year to $4,000 a year, which is a $2,500 increase. Then there is a $2,000 increase for Irrigation Maintenance. As our irrigation system ages, we are seeing more and more irrigation repairs. Those two-line items account for the majority of the change in your operation expenses. Clubhouse expenses are projected to increase from $129,690 to $132,410. The water utilities for the Clubhouse are increasing by about $900. Maintenance is increasing from $10,000 to $15,000. Tennis Court Maintenance would be reduced, depending on actual expenses. The bottom line is that the budget is increasing by $3,000 in that category. Transfer Out remains the same at $130,000, so your total expenditures are increasing from
$708,000 to $717,000, or a total of about $9,000. Are there any questions on the Proposed Budget? It's a status quo budget for the most part. You can also look at the Capital Reserve Fund on Page 9. For Fiscal Year 2019, we are showing a Transfer In from the General Fund of
$130,000 and a projected Carry Forward of $387,000, which is close to what the Reserve Study projected, at this point. Obviously, the projects we have done, have been slightly different or in different order than what's been identified in the plan, but we are close to where the Reserve
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Study indicates where we should be as far as our amount of available revenue next year. The expenses identified in the Reserve Study are projected for this year, based on the age of the pavement. Sycamore needs to be resurfaced, milled and overlayed, but we would want the District Engineer to look at that and determine whether it was something that we need to do this year, or if it can it be put off a year or two. There are some curb and gutter repairs, based on the age that they are programmed, $20,604 for resurfacing, replenishing and laser grading the tennis courts and $35,000 for air handler and condensing unit replacements. We have been replacing those as they have needed to be replaced, so we don't foresee that we would need to spend
$35,000 at one time. We also have the replacement of the carpet and furnishings identified for the Clubhouse. Whether we do that or not, is up to the Board. The repainting of the interior is also contemplated. The pool resurfacing is being done this year and next year, the equipment will be replaced. We accelerated the replacement of the equipment and did that this year. That comprises the $218,000 that's on the expense side of this Capital Reserve Fund Budget, but that doesn't necessarily mean we will do all of those projects this year. It just reflects what was identified in your Reserve Study. Are there any questions on the General or Capital Reserve or Debt Service Funds?
Mr. Szewczyk: No.
Mr. Flint: If there are no questions, we need a motion to adopt Resolution 2018-09.

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Szewczyk, with all in favor, Resolution 201 8-09 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget and Relating to the Annual Appropriations, was adopted.

	Consideration of Resolution 2018-10 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying an Assessment Roll

Mr. Flint: The next Resolution is 2018-10, which imposes the special assessments associated with the budget that you just approved. There are two Exhibits to the Resolution; Exhibit A is the budget that you approved and Exhibit B is the Assessment Roll, which lists the parcels of property within the District, O&M and debt. It also authorizes us certifying the Assessment Roll to Sarasota County. Are there any questions on Resolution 2018-10? Hearing none, we need a motion to adopt the Resolution.
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On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Sabol, with all in favor, Resolution 20 18-10 Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying an Assessment Roll, was adopted.


Mr. Flint: We need a motion to close the public hearing.


On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor, the Public Hearing was closed.

	Discussion Regarding Preparation of Public Facilities Report

Mr. Flint: District Counsel requested this item.
Mr. Eckert: The District is an independent District under Florida Law, which means that it is subject to Chapters 189 and 190. Section 189.08, requires Special Districts to prepare a Public Facilities Report, which is usually prepared by your Pistrict Engineer, listing your existing facilities. It also lists the projects that you are going to be undertaking in the next five years. We tried to find the Public Facilities Report for this District, but were unable to locate it. I think George may take another stab at trying to locate it, but in the event that we don't, that is something we have to prepare. We have to post it to our website and send it to the City and County. The reason behind it, was that the County would get all of these reports from local Governments that were going to have proj ects in the next five years. If someone was going to install a new sewer line and they wanted to pay for upsizing it, or work with other local governments, they would be on notice that project was coming up. In practice, I never had a County or City call a CDD that I represent and say, "Hey, we would like to do this project with
you" or "We saw the report that you provided to the County. "
Mr. Flint: Or knew what to do with it.
Mr. Eckert: It is a statutory requirement and with the new website requirements, it needs to be on your website. What I am suggesting, is that we ask your District Engineer, to provide a proposal to prepare the Public Facilities Report, and provide to the Board for consideration. We are going to make sure that we don't have one. I know that it wasn't on the website when we looked. When we reached out to the District Manager, initially, they couldn't find it readily, but I think they are going to look one more time. It may be something we already have and we don't have to do at all.
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Mr. Szewczyk: As long as I have been on the Board, I think that's the first time I ever heard that specific item mentioned. Chances are it was never done.
Mr. Flint: We worked on it back in the Spring of 2017. I just need to see if it was ever brought to the Board and accepted by the Board. We will look at that between now and the next meeting. I will get with Mike on anything that we need to do on the next agenda. If we've already done it, then we can provide an update on the status of it.
	Approval of Fiscal Year 2019 Meeting Schedule

Mr. Flint: Each year the Board approves an annual meeting schedule. We prepared a sample one, based on the Board continuing to meet on the third Wednesday of each other month at 7:00 p.m., in this location. If the Board wants to continue with that, then this notice would be in order. Historically, we haven't advertised a December meeting. We advertise a July meeting, but if it's not needed, in the past you cancelled it. It shows 11 meetings, understanding that the July meeting may not take place. It depends on whether the Board needs to meet that month.
Mr. Szewczyk: George, would it make sense if, traditionally, we haven't met in December, but at least you should set a date, if for whatever reason, we need to meet, so we don't have to post an additional notice in the newspaper and do what we normally do in July and just cancel the meeting. Does that make sense?
Mr. Flint: Yes. It always gives you the flexibility, if you think you might need it. Mr. Szewczyk: We never know.
Mr. Flint: The third Wednesday is December 1 9th • If you want, we can include it, and if there's not a need to meet, we can cancel it. It's up to the Board. We can meet as few as four times a year, which we have Districts do, or 24 times a year. I wouldn't encourage having 24 meetings.
Mr. Szewczyk: How does the Board feel about it? It's really no big deal, but if for whatever reason we had to meet, we wouldn't have to notify the public again.
Mr. Sabol: That's a good idea. lf we need an emergency meeting, we can just have it.
Mr. Szewczyk: Go ahead and add the date. Is 7:00 p.m. okay? I can't make the afternoon. Would 6:00 p.m. work any better?
Mr. Flint: 6:00 p.m. is better for us. I think having the meeting at 7:00 p.m., was to accommodate you.
Mr. Szewczyk: I'm okay with 6:00 p.m. How does the rest of the Board feel?
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Mr. Smith: 6:00 p.m. is a good time.
Mr. Szewczyk: Okay, let' s change it to 6:00 p.m.
Mr. Flint: The other issue, which Mike reminded me of, is that the third Wednesday in November is the day before Thanksgiving. You may want to consider moving that a week earlier or a week later.
Mr. Szewczyk: Let's move it to November 14th, which is the second week. Mr. Flint: Nathan, is there anything going on here on November 14th?
Mr. Eckert:  If you move it to the 14th,  your Board Members won't be sworn in for that meeting.
Mr. Flint: The issue that you are going to have is that the new Board Members can't be
sworn in, until the second Tuesday after the first Monday in November.
Mr. Szewczyk: Say that again?
Mr. Flint: It's the second Tuesday after the first Monday. That's how the statutes read. Mr. Eckert: Basically two weeks after the election.
Mr. Szewczyk: So the 14th won't work? Mr. Flint: It's too early.
Mr. Szewczyk: So just make it the 28th .
Mr. Flint: You typically don't elect officers until your January meeting, so you might want to move it to November 28th.
Mr. Szewczyk: Let's do that.
Mr. Flint: So we are changing the meeting time to 6:00 p.m., moving the November meeting to November 28th and include a December 19th meeting. Are there any other changes? If not, a motion to approve, as amended, would be in order.

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor, the Fiscal Year 2018 meeting schedule, was approved as amended.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Business Administration
	Approval of Minutes of.June 20, 2018 Meeting

Mr. Flint: Does the Board have any additions, deletions or corrections to the minutes? Mr. Szewczyk: No.
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Mr. Flint: If not, we need a motion to approve the minutes.


On MOTION by Mr. Sabol, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor, the minutes of the June 20, 2018 meeting, as presented, were approved.

	Approval of Check Register

Mr. Flint:   You have the Check Register for June pt  to June 301\  and the July Check Register from July 1 51 to July 3! 51. The June Check Register totals $97,390, and the July Check Register totals $52,301.90. There are some transfers to the Trustee, which inflated the June number. Anywhere you see U.S. Bank, typically would be a transfer. Are there any questions on either Check Register?
Mr. Smith: Yes. The June water bill for the fountain was $2,700. I looked at the water bill for the Clubhouse and fountain, and assuming that in November, December and January, the fountains were off last year, because we only had an $18 water bill. Then in February, the bill increased to $21 5, March was $1,097, April was $661, May was $600, June was $2,722 and then July was back to $676. Even $600, seems high to run a fountain, much less a $2,700 water bill. I don't have a clue what we are doing out there. I know that we had a leak at one point and Brad had worked on it, but I'm hoping that he fixed it. Even with a $676 water bill, there has to be something wrong to have a water bill that high.
Mr. Trates: I spoke to Solitude Lake Management, because I didn't know that they added fountains and lake detection. They are probably going to drain it out, to see if there is a leak in the pipe, just to double check, because I would rather have someone that has more knowledge to handle this.
Mr. Smith: Even $200 in February seems steep, but if that's what it is, that's what it is. I don't have a clue. I know what my water bill is. I'm running water all the time and taking showers. The water shouldn't be running all the time. That boggled my mind, so I went back and looked. We are spending a lot of money and I don't know where the water is going.
Mr. Trates: There is also evaporation. That would be for the more normal high water bill. Not these exuberant crazy ones.
Mr. Smith: So somebody is going to look at the fountains and leak detect them? Mr. Trates: Yes. If you see that the fountain is off, don't worry.
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Mr. Smith: That was my big issue.
Mr. Szewczyk: George, I see a bill for our typical score of 3 1/32 on our landscaping, but I didn't see the report. Did they issue one?
Mr. Flint: They are sending the reports to me in a drop box. Sometimes they go into my spam folder. I know that they have another site visit tomorrow. Let me check when the last site visit was to get you the report. They are sent because of the file size. I am not emailing them. We will look into the water bill for the fountains and get the Board the last landscape maintenance report. Are there any other questions on the June or July Check Registers?
Mr. Szewczyk: Yes. Was the shed painted? Mr. Trates: It was completed yesterday.
Ms. Stephens: We haven't received a PSA report for a long time.
Mr. Flint: Typically, they are emailed out to the Board. I will check and make sure.
You haven't received the last one. I will make sure that's emailed out to everybody.
Ms. Stephens: I saw something about a past due amount from North Port Utilities.
Mr. Flint: If it was past due, it may have been because we were going back and forth with them trying to figure out why they were so high.
Mr. Smith: It could've been the water from the pool.
Mr. Flint: We were also trying to get a credit on the refill of the pool. I don't see any past due ones. There's a past due on each bill, but it says "zero. "
Ms. Stephens: As far as the fountains are concerned, if we can't seem to remedy the situation with this water, could we go to a Plan B? I know that everyone likes it and it looks pretty and everything, but as Harry said, the water bill is getting out of control. If there is a leak that for some reason, they can't seem to find it, do we have a Plan B?
Mr. Szewczyk: I'm thinking that Plan B would be a re-design of the entrance.
Mr. Sabol: We should tum the water off for a while to figure out what we are doing. When I looked at the Clubhouse, the bill was $200, but the fountains cost $600. There's definitely something going on there. Nathan has it under control. You are going to look into it. By next month, we will have a recommendation.
Mr. Trates: Yes.
Mr. Smith: At that point, we have to decide what we are going to do.
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Ms. Stephens: I think we should take the big planter down. The residents will hate us, yet no one wants to ever step up to the plate to be up here. Having said that, through the years, we invested so much money. When do we say "Enough already?" We keep having people come out and put hundreds of thousands of dollars into this. Cut it off.
Mr. Szewczyk: Nathan, give us your report next week and we will take it from there. Like Harry and Bud said, if it's a matter of just shutting off the water to buy us some more time to decide what to do, so be it, but we can't continue spending that kind of money for those things. As I pull in, the arbors are what does it for me, not necessarily the fountains. If they have to go, so be it. Maybe if we move the playground over there, we could take the fill dirt that we were going to use, dump it inside a couple offountains and invest in a couple of trees.
Mr. Trates: I will take that as Plan A.
Mr. Flint: If there aren't any other questions, we need a motion to approve the June and July Check Registers.

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor, the June and July Check Registers, were approved.

	Balance Sheet and Income Statement

Mr. Flint: You have the Unaudited Financial Statements through July 31, 2018. If you have any questions, we can discuss those. We still have a variance of $10,000 on our O&M assessments. We · collected $646,000 of the $656,000 in O&M assessments. I might want to draw down into what that variance is, because at this point, tax certificates should've been sold. I will see if I can find what's driving that number. As far as our expenses, we are under our prorated and operations, and are slightly over our pro-rated for admin and under our prorated budget in the Clubhouse categories. The $130,000 has been transferred at this point. At the end of July, we have an ending fund balance of $251 ,859. That doesn't include the capital reserve funds. Are there any questions on the financial statements?
Mr. Szewczyk: No.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	General Audience Comments
Mr. Flint: Are there any comments from the public? Please state your name and address and try to limit your comments to three minutes.
14 
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Ms. Johnson: Debra Johnson, 1505 Scarlett Avenue. I think you are doing a great job. I haven't been around a lot this summer, but I questioned the Police Officer that we hired. I haven't seen anybody around here lately, so I'm just wondering if there was one. Weren't we supposed to have a Police Officer on our side street?
Mr. Flint: Yes. We did that in July. There wasn't anyone in August. We will do it again in September.
Ms. Johnson: We still have a lot of speeders. Most people don't recognize stop signs or think that they can roll through it. Not a lot of people stop at the stop sign in front of my house, which I think is bad when you are speeding on Plantation Boulevard. That would be dangerous. Lights are not working on Plantation Boulevard. What is going on with the lights?
Mr. Flint: We have one segment where there are 13 lights. The breaker keeps tripping. We contacted the installation contractor. They are sending somebody out to look at it, but their initial reaction was that it had nothing to do with the installation.
Ms. Johnson: Just one section?
Mr. Flint: Yes. It goes quite some ways. The front section by the convenience store hasn't been done yet. I believe that's scheduled to start at the end of this month. They are waiting on the materials to be delivered to be able to do that work, but there is a section where the lights have not been replaced.
Ms. Johnson: It was dark all the way down.
Mr. Flint: We are aware of it. At some point, we might need to get Mike involved. I hope not, but we are at the point where the installation contractor is saying that it's not a warranty issue. There's probably a problem with the circuit breaker or a lightning strike. They are going to come out and look at it. If it's a warranty issue, they will repair it. If not, we will get an electrician to repair it.
Ms. Johnson: I was going to bring up the playground, but I'm glad that it was brought up. That was planned before and it's a worse problem now. You would think that they would have the foresight to say that it's not going to work in this spot. As far as the warranty, I think they are going to say, " We only warranty what we put in and this is where you told us to put it. " I don't know if that's true or not. I'm glad you brought that up and hopefully they can do something about that. It's crazy that no child can use the playground, because we have a lot of kids here. Thank you.
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Ms. Plath: Sharon Plath, 21 90 Boxwood Street. Is the water recycled? Mr. Szewczyk: For what?
Ms. Plath: For the fountains.
Mr. Flint: Are you talking about the fountains in the front? Ms. Plath: Yes.
Mr. Flint: We use potable water. Ms. Plath: Is it recycled?
Mr. Flint: It is recycled, but there may be a leak. There's something going on. You will still lose water on a fountain like that, because of evaporation, but we shouldn't be losing as much water as we are losing. It's recirculating it.
Mr. Sabol: We fill up the basin with City water, which is the same water that you get through your faucet. There is a pump that the water goes through. It goes through the filter just like a pool and then it's put back out with enough pressure to do the fountain. Then it comes back down into the basin and gets recycled again. Yes, there are pipes just like a pool.
Mr. Szewczyk: It's not ground water.
Mr. Sabol: No. It's not pond water or well water. Its City water and we are recirculating
it.
Ms. Plath: How long do we have the water on. What are the time limits? Mr. Sabol: I believe it's on 24 hours, ifI'm not mistaken.
Mr. Szewczyk: I thought the fountains were shut off at 1 1 :00 p.m. 
Mr. Trates: They used to go off at 11 :00 p.m. or 12:00 a.m. and then came back on at
6:00 a.m. or 7:00 a.m. They are on timers.
Mr. Sabol: So they are on from 6:00 a.m. until 1 1 :00 p.m.
Ms. Plath: I came from the airport last night and the fountains were still running. Maybe the schedule was off.
Mr. Sabol: We can have Brad check the timers. Ms. Plath: What does the District Engineer do?
Mr. Flint: The District Engineer handles any issues that come up with the stormwater ponds, Water Management District permits, lake bank erosion and roadway issues. It's a civil engineering function, primarily. We· put her report at the beginning of the meeting, so she's not
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sitting through the meeting when we are paying her. Anytime any issue comes up, civil engineering type issues, she gets involved.
Ms. Plath: It will be interesting what she has to say about the playground, because someone should've known. I'm not looking to place blame, but I'm just asking.
Mr. Flint: The District Engineer wasn't asked to design or manage that project. The Board hired an Architect to do a conceptual plan and then hired a playground installation company to install it. They didn't pay the engineer to do construction administration, manage or design anything.
Ms. Plath: So the engineer doesn' t look at that?
Mr. Flint: They didn't look at that, because it wasn't something that they were asked to do at the time.
Ms. Plath: Thank you.
Ms. Sabol: Wilma Sabol, 1528 Scarlett Avenue. First of all, thank you for the chairs at the tennis courts. That' s wonderful, because people would have to sit on the ground. A lot of us would like to see a little more maintenance out there. When you arrive on the tennis court, the court seems to be good now, but everything else is unkempt. The chairs are never dry, which would be nice when you are sitting down. Luckily, a lot of us bring towels. A large part of the tennis courts has a lot of clay. I'm sure that you are trying to correct that. Some of us had to use a hose to spray all of the clay around. Some of that has actually corrected, but it's still very unkempt. I'm speaking for all of the tennis players, because we are out there and we have open tennis. Things are not as good as it could be. Even the five-gallon jug is dirty where the fountain is. There is bacteria, which someone is going to get sick off of. We all have cleaned up out there. I speak for everyone who is complaining. Thank you.
Mr. Flint: Are there any other public comments? Hearing none, I'm assuming that staff will look into the concerns regarding the tennis courts.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
	District Counsel

 Staff Reports
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Mr. Eckert: There were two items that the Board asked me to look at, at the last meeting; one was the playground installation contract. I provided my report on that. There was some minor damage by the lighting contractor to some of the landscaping. You asked me to look at
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that contract very briefly, because there wasn't a lot of money involved. That contract provides that the vendor is responsible for repairing any damage that they incur to the facilities. I provided that information to George. I think it was about $800 or less. It's a question of what you want to do. You probably need to talk to your lighting contractor, but if they are still doing work for you and doing a good job, I'm not sure how much you want to push, but that's not my call.
Mr. Flint: Are there any comments or direction on that issue? Hearing none,
	District Manager - Action Items

Mr. Flint: You have the Action Items List. The proposals for preserve maintenance was deferred, and will be brought up again in the new fiscal year. We reached out both to the County and the Florida Highway Patrol (FHP). We thought that the County could provide the enhanced enforcement, and then found out that they could not. They referred us back to North Port. That item will be removed from the Actions Item List. We are on hold on the Landscape Design Plan for the front and the community entrance. The drainage in the playground area was discussed. We are embarking on the next phase of the streetlight replacement, but we have some issues with the current lights. We have the Water Management District Permit for Innovation Schools that the District Engineer is still evaluating. I asked the City to look at the four-way stop sign on Plantation Boulevard and Scarlett Avenue. They indicated that they would require a Warrant Study to do that. They didn't see anything based on the distances between intersections or proximity to other lights that would prohibit a four-way stop there. We would need to have a Warrant Study done by an engineer or Traffic Consultant. That Warrant Study would indicate whether four-way stop signs were warranted. If it' s something that the Board wants me to move forward with, I've asked the District Engineer for recommendations on Traffic Consultants that prepare Warrant Studies. I also got a few names from the City of North Port. I would be happy
to go out and get proposals and bring them back to you at the next meeting.
Mr. Sabol: Do you have any idea, how expensive that would be? Mr. Flint: I really don't. I don't want to throw a number out there. Mr. Szewczyk: Let's get the proposal. We will find out how much.
Mr. Smith: We can spend a couple of thousand dollars to get this study done. Mr. Flint: It will be more than $2,000.
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Mr. Smith: It could leave the impression of them saying, "The re's no reason to put a
sign there." Correct?
Mr. Flint: It's their road. If its warranted, I don't believe they can say you can't do it.
Then there is some liability on the City.
Mr. Smith: What if it's not warranted?
Mr. Flint: If it's not warranted, then they wouldn't allow it to be in. Mr. Smith: We just spent that money.
Mr. Flint: There's no guarantee. It's based on traffic counts. It's a combination of traffic counts and safety issues. They will see if there are accidents, in combination with the traffic counts on the side streets, to see if it justifies a four-way stop.
Mr. Sabol: I'm in agreement. Let's get proposals and then we can decide from there. Mr. Flint: That's all I had on the Action Items List.
	Amenities Manager - Monthly Report

Mr. Trates: These last two months, since the last meeting in June, we had a new hot tub motor installed, a security camera added to the library card room, a concrete project completed for the back picnic area, 12,000 pounds of new mulch added to the back picnic area by our maintenance man, Brad and myself, adding four new commercial umbrellas to the pool deck and having the maintenance shed professionally painted by P&N Labor Force. It was completed yesterday. A new A/C unit was installed for the billiards room and bathrooms. Our A/C unit in the Clubhouse was repaired by Brad, as well as installing a brand-new drainage system with a pipe. The pool lights were also fixed by Brad. Brad is definitely saving the District a lot of money for repairs. Under Amenity Management, I have two quotes. These were things that I wanted to bring to the Board's attention. I just had quotes prepared. The first is for resealing the pool pavers. It's been over two years since we first sealed the project. It should be sealed every two to three years, based on usage. It's getting to the point of where we noticed that the water is not beating up on the pavers any more. You can tell where the sealant is wearing away and it needs to be re-sealed. We found a solution with Gorilla, which is the same company that sealed them two years ago. The price is $4,050, which includes professional deep cleaning of the pavers, re-sending of all the expansion joints to specifications and applying two coats of premium water based sealer. The company said that it would take 24 to 48 hours for the sealant to fully cure, so it can go back into usage. The second quote is from Welch Tennis for
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professional rolling all four clay tennis courts. I asked the Service Tech for Welch Tennis in our area, to come out and survey our courts. He said that they just needed more material and rolling. This would make the tennis lines flusher with the clay. The cost is $850 for all four clay courts. Tonight, I was also going to have a few different quotes for the middle tennis concrete area from Bradley Ray Concrete. They came out last week to check the area, to see if there are some solutions for the drainage where all of that clay built up. Unfortunately, they weren't able to provide the quote for tonight, but I will more than likely have it for the next meeting. They are having some issues out there. We spoke to Julie who is one of the co-owners of the company, about adding galvanized steel grates and directing the water through a channel, down to our normal drainage system. When she came out to survey the area, she realized that the slant that was originally done for the tennis courts, pointed in the opposite direction. It would be a huge job to try to direct it to the drainage field that we have, which is closer to the picnic area. She's trying to come up with a few different options, because the way that its slanted now, causes all of that clay to build up and all of that water to lead right to an electrical box. She said that if we were going to go that route, the electrical box would have to be moved. We don't know how deep the hole would go. It could turn into a huge project, but we are definitely looking into different options for that center area. That is all I have and I'm happy to take questions.
Mr. Sabol: What is the price on resealing the pavers? Mr. Trates: It was $4,050.
Mr. Szewczyk: Do you know what we paid two years ago?
Mr. Trates: I do not, but I can check into that, because I believe that it was all in one lump sum, when Sparkling Clean originally did the pool pavers. We reached out to Sparkling Clean, when we noticed that the pavers were getting to the point of where they needed to be resealed. They told me that this was the company that we subcontracted with.
Mr. Szewczyk: You said two to three years, but I noticed some loose pavers out there. At a minimum, I feel that they need to be in good standing to tighten up those joints. I would like to know what that part of the job cost us the last time, whether it was subbed out to Gorilla, and how much that was. Being that I witnessed some of those loose pavers, I would be set to go ahead with this, as long as it' s in the ballpark of what they charged us two years ago.
Mr. Trates: I can definitely check our records. That was a little before my time. Mr. Smith: I have two questions. You said that it was going to take 24 to 48 hours.
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talce?
 Mr. Trates: For it to cure.
Mr. Smith: So basically, we are looking at the pool being closed for three days, give or

Mr. Trates: God willing.
Mr. Smith: Is this strictly for the pool deck? Mr. Trates: Yes.
Mr. Smith: Do we need the verandah done, while they are here? That would be my
file_20.png



thought too. If they are here, it's going to be cheaper to have them do everything, as opposed to letting them go back and then next year, have them come out here for $4,000, versus getting it done for $1,000. I'm sure that they won't do it for $1,000.
Mr. Trates: I can reach out to them.
Mr. Szewczyk: Find out when it was done.
Mr. Smith: I don't know that it needs to be. If it needs to be done every two years, when was the last time that the verandah was done?
Mr. Trates: Its every two to three years for a pool deck, because its constantly wet. The verandah is every four to five years, because it's out of the sun and doesn't constantly get wet with chlorine water.
Mr. Smith: We can also look into the verandah. I would hate to lose an opportunity,
while they are here. Maybe this needs to be done and then we can get it all done at one time.
Mr. Trates: I can definitely reach out to them. I don't know if it's going to be an add on cost or if it would be cheaper in one lump sum.
Mr. Smith: If it doesn't need to be done, then we don't need to even ask. As far as the
tennis courts, you are talking about court rolling. I don't know the first thing about tennis, so when you are talking about court rolling, the only thing that I think of is when we put down sod, we used to have a water roller that would smash it down. I assume that it's the same thing.
Mr. Trates: Its similar, but I believe that its more professional. Mr. Smith: Is this what Welch says that we need?
Mr. Trates: Yes. I remember in January, the price was around $32,000 to $36,000, just for laser grading the four courts. That was their biggest recommendation at that time, which I know is in reserves.
Mr. Smith: Right now, are they saying that we definitely need to do this roller grating?
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Mr. Trates: It needs to be done.
Mr. Smith: All of these other options, we don't need. I'm assuming? Mr. Trates: Yes. They were just options that they threw in there.
Mr. Smith: Like the new nets, new posts and benches.
Mr. Trates: They threw those in. Those weren't asked for.
Mr. Smith: It wasn't what we needed, but the $850 for the court rolling is something that they suggest we do right away.
Mr. Trates: Correct.
Mr. Sabol: Is that something our maintenance people could do?
Mr. Trates: They could. We looked into a few options of renting a roller, which costs more than this price. It was $2,100 to rent a roller for the week or purchase one for $4,500.
Mr. Smith: How long would it take for them to do the four courts? Mr. Trates: He didn't give me a timeframe.
Mr. Smith: Would we have to close the courts down for a day while they do this or after these are done?
Mr. Trates: I would say two to three days, but I will double check on that.
Mr. Smith: On the pool p avers, we are in the rainy season. It rains pretty much every afternoon. How does the rain affect the sealer that they are going to put on the pavers?
Mr. Szewczyk: How quick is it going to dry?
Mr. Smith: If they put it down and then it rains an hour later, is it just getting washed
away?
Mr. Trates: That's more so the curing process, until it can be walked on. I believe that
it's a two or three-hour window of where they put it down early morning, and then it is protected, but it needs that extra time to cure and then it can fully set in the pavers to hold the sand in.
Mr. Smith: That's what I'm asking. This time of year, you can usually set your clock by the rains, but not this year.
Ms. Stephens: Would it make any sense to wait until the rainy season is over and then do it, if that's a concern?
Mr. Smith: Until November?
Ms. Stephens: Alright.
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Mr. Szewczyk: I think as long as they have that two to three-hour window, we will be fine. Do we want to move forward on the tennis court rolling for $850?
Mr. Smith: I say that we should do it.

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor, the Welch Tennis Proposal, for professional rolling of the four clay courts, in the total amount of $850, was approved.

Mr. Flint: We are going to hold off on the sealing, until we find out what we paid last time and get a price for the verandah and bring that back.
Mr. Smith: The verandah needs to be done.
Mr. Trates: George, do you have that in your notes? Mr. Flint: I can find the agreement.
Mr. Smith: What about the water jug being dirty? Mr. Trates: I will take care of that.
Mr. Smith: Thank you.
Mr. Sabol: Where do we have a vandalism problem?
Mr. Trates: We haven't had any more issues. I actually spoke with an officer. Sargent Terry came out on Friday and looked at the footage. I also burned the footage to CDs, because he wanted to see if it correlated to some issues on Jonah Drive, to see if it was the same kids. We have the full name of one of the kids and the first name of the other one. The North Port Police Department is trying to correlate everything.
Mr. Flint: Are they residents in the community?
Mr. Trates: No. I heard from an officer saying that there were some car break-ins and they wanted to see if it was correlated to the same issues that we were having here.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Other Business
Mr. Szewczyk: Is there anything else?
Mr. Sabol: Wait, we have Supervisor's Requests.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisor's Requests


23
file_23.png



August 15, 2018	Lakeside Plantation CDD

Mr. Sabol: The pergolas are a problem. We rebuilt the right-hand side. We trimmed and painted it. What are the plans for the left-hand side? It doesn't look very nice right now. Can we trim it to equalize the other side, inspect it and see if it needs any construction work? If so, can we paint it and do the same thing?
Mr. Szewczyk: I think we were planning on doing that next year. Mr. Flint: We talked about doing that in Fiscal Year 2019.
Mr. Sabol: I have a couple of residents asking me.
Mr. Flint: I don't think you want to trim it until we are ready to do the work. I guess because they are the same age, constructed with the same material and are subject to the same elements, that they have the same issues as the other side. I would probably just plan on doing the same thing that we did on the other side. I think it was in the range of $20,000 to do that. It's just a matter of when the Board wants to do that. I think we talked about waiting until the new fiscal year to do it.
Ms. Stephens: Are. we ever going to think about doing anything with this carpeting?
Mr. Flint: It's in the Reserve Study. When we get into 201 9, if that's something that the Board wants to move forward with, then we can get proposals.
Ms. Stephens: I want to look at something a little different than carpeting. There is material out there that would be able to sustain high traffic. I j ust don't know the name of it, but a friend of mine put it throughout the entire house. Its scuff and slip resistant. It's supposed to be wonderful. I will get the name of it and maybe we can think about it. Carpeting is a waste. The first party you have, the first wine and cheese event, it will get dirty. It's just a waste of money.
Mr. Trates: The ones that I' ve been looking into, if we go with carpet, are the communalized ones, which have 2x2 or 3:x3 squares. If it gets soiled beyond a carpet cleaner or a professional company cleaning it, we can just remove that square, add a new one and have a stack of them.
Ms. Stephens: Having said that, how easy is it to remove that square?
Mr. Flint: They are made to be replaced. You see those in convention centers and high traffic commercial areas. We've done it in a ballroom in Polk County. It's not inexpensive, but you don't have a lot of area here. The other thing that we should think about is that those kitchen
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cabinets are horrible.   The  kitchen needs to be  taken  care  of.   It's an  eyesore.   The front is peeling offand its ugly.
Mr. Szewczyk: This is our community. The entranceway, this room, the Clubhouse and the pool are focal points, so I would not be opposed to having a group take a look, knowing how much money we have in the Reserve Study for this job, for this year. We should take a look at, specifically this room and the adjoining rooms and prioritize, to see what we really need to change. Is it the carpet? Is it the window coverings? Is it the furniture? We didn't take care of this furniture the way that it should've been taken care of. There were warranties out there with the companies and guarantees for such a time period. Things cracked and legs broke and we never took advantage of truly maintaining that furniture. I hear about it all the time. If any of that needs to be changed, we also have to keep in mind, how much this furniture gets moved around and stored. Is it being moved properly? Do we have to look at furniture that moves easier? I don't know, but I think it would be a good idea to get greater input from the community, create a group and set a budget. You could be the numbers guy. Come back and prioritize it and we will go in that order.
Ms. Stephens: Going on what he said, I read an article years ago. If you are in a facility
like this, what you should do, is go to a resort, like a Marriott or a Hilton, and see what furniture they have, because that furni ture gets used every day. Joe is right. It's unfortunate, but we can't be on top of the residents, 24/7. You see kids jumping on the furniture when their parents are here, and nobody says anything. I'm not talking about the staff. I'm talking about the parents. There is no accountability. They let the kids do whatever they want. What can we do? Whatever we get in the future, has to be able to tolerate that kind of abuse, because it is abuse.
Mr. Szewczyk: The moving around is a big part ofsome ofthe damage that gets done to these chairs.
Mr. Trates: My suggestion is not to get solid wood furniture.
Mr. Szewczyk: But we have to have something that's going to hold up. Mr. Smith: Something sturdy and light enough to move and work with.
Ms. Stephens: A leg broke on the couch when it was moved. They were moving it and it broke right off. Joe is 100% right. We have to get something that can be easily moved, something that we all collectively want. Someone needs to look at everything, not just the people on the Board. In the community, we have so many people and everybody is going to be
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annoyed if you don't pick their choices. I think we need to look at what's out there, and what's going to be able to handle the volume that we have.
Mr. Trates: You can come up with different options and vote on it.
Mr. Szewczyk: I recommend, when the time comes, because we have other issues to resolve, maybe a Board Member can head up a group with you, ask for the involvement, have a meeting, just walk through the facility and look at everything, and then we can go from there.
Ms. Stephens: Okay, I'm good.
Mr. Szewczyk: Are there any other Supervisor comments? Hearing none,


ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment

On MOTION by Mr. Szewczyk, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in favor the meeting was adjourned.
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